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What is significant?
Carlton North Primary School, including the rendered brick Gothic Revival building designed by W.H. Ellerker and
opened 1878, and the brick Infant School opened 1914.

How is it significant?
The Carlton North Primary School is of historical and architectural significance to the State of Victoria. It satisfies
the following criterion for inclusion in the Victorian Heritage Register:

Criterion A
Importance to the course, or pattern, of Victoria’s cultural history.

Criterion D
Importance in demonstrating the principal characteristics of a class of cultural places and objects

Why is it significant?

The Carlton North Primary School is historically significant as a demonstration of the development of state
schooling in Victoria. The 1878 building is based on a standard design, one of several produced as part of an
1873 competition held by the new Department of Education. It has a direct association with the extensive school
building program across the colony in the 1870s, clearly reflecting the massive increase in school enrolments
following the passing of the Education Act 1872. The 1878 building and 1914 Infant School together demonstrate
the development of education policy and educational architecture, and the population growth of inner Melbourne
in the late 1800s and early 1900s. [Criterion A]

The Carlton North Primary School is architecturally significant as a pivotal example of an 1870s ‘competition
school’, produced as part of an 1873 competition held by the newly formed Department of Education. The
building is a very successful Gothic Revival composition and stands largely intact. As a ‘competition school’, it is
unusual for its rendered brickwork facade. [Criterion D]

Permit Exemptions

General Exemptions:

General exemptions apply to all places and objects included in the Victorian Heritage Register (VHR). General
exemptions have been designed to allow everyday activities, maintenance and changes to your property, which



don’t harm its cultural heritage significance, to proceed without the need to obtain approvals under the Heritage
Act 2017.

Places of worship: In some circumstances, you can alter a place of worship to accommaodate religious practices
without a permit, but you must notify the Executive Director of Heritage Victoria before you start the works or
activities at least 20 business days before the works or activities are to commence.

Subdivision/consolidation: Permit exemptions exist for some subdivisions and consolidations. If the subdivision or
consolidation is in accordance with a planning permit granted under Part 4 of the Planning and Environment Act
1987 and the application for the planning permit was referred to the Executive Director of Heritage Victoria as a
determining referral authority, a permit is not required.

Specific exemptions may also apply to your registered place or object. If applicable, these are listed below.
Specific exemptions are tailored to the conservation and management needs of an individual registered place or
object and set out works and activities that are exempt from the requirements of a permit. Specific exemptions
prevail if they conflict with general exemptions.

Find out more about heritage permit exemptions here.

Specific Exemptions:

Buildings constructed or moved to the site post 1990 (this exemption does not apply to buildings which link with
or abut the 1878 school building or 1914 infant school building)

e All internal works
¢ Removal or demolition
e Construction of ramps to facilitate access.

Buildings which link with or abut the 1878 school building or 1914 infant school building

¢ Internal works, provided that there is no change to the external building envelope and that no works
intersect with the 1878 school building or 1914 infant school building.

Access

e Repair of existing ramps and associated decks and platforms and replacement of these elements where
form, scale, materials, appearance and method of fixing remain the same.

Landscape/ outdoor areas

Installation and replacement of shade sail fabric and supporting structure

Replacement of playground equipment and outdoor furniture in the same location

Pruning of all trees to ensure safety

Removal, replacement and installation of new ground surfacing treatments (for example, asphalt, safety
matting) provided it is not within five metres of significant buildings.

Construction dates 1878,
Architect/Designer Ellerker, William H,

Heritage Act

Categories Registered place,

PRIMARY SCHOOL NO. 1252, LEE STREET SCHOOL, COLLINGWOOD

Other Names STOCKADE, CARLTON STOCKADE SCHOOL,
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History

Carlton North Primary School (formerly Lee Street State School and Stockade School, and also known as
Primary School No. 1252) is built on the site of the former Collingwood Stockade.

The Collingwood Stockade was established in 1853 to house convicts who worked in nearby bluestone quarries.
When the stockade closed in 1866 the site was acquired by the Mental Hygiene Department for use as an
asylum. The stockade buildings were used to house mentally ill patients until 1873.

A school utilising the existing buildings on site opened on 28 July 1873. This was just months after the Education
Act 1872 became operational, making school compulsory and free for children aged 6 to 15. As the area was
then known as Carlton, the school was named ‘Carlton Stockade School’, or simply ‘Stockade School'.

The stockade buildings were dilapidated and unsuitable for learning. Head teacher Henry Jones complained to
the Department of Education about vermin, bugs, and mould. There was also not enough room for the enrolled
children. In 1877 most of the stockade buildings were demolished.

A new school building was opened by the Minister for Education on 28 June 1878. It was based on a generic
public-school design by the architect William Henry Ellerker. The design had been prepared for a competition
held by the new Department of Public Instruction in 1873. The competition produced 13 generic school designs
which were adapted for use across the colony. Ellerker's school designs for the Department were very influential,
his most important being the design for the school at Buninyong.

Constructed in the Gothic Revival style, the 1878 building was designed with a vast slate roof, relatively short
walls, Gothic-style windows and buttresses, and huge windowless gabled ends. It was arranged along a central
axis with two end wings, which were built at different lengths. When the school was built, it was intended that the
wings could be extended later to meet the requirements of a growing population.

It is thought that the bluestone from the Stockade was repurposed for the foundations. The Lee Street frontage of
the building features the words ‘Lee Street School No. 1252’. The school was officially renamed to Lee Street
State School in 1879.

Though most of the Stockade buildings were demolished in 1877, two significant buildings survived into the
twentieth century. The Stockade Governor's House was used as a residence for the school’'s headteacher. It was
demolished in 1913. A Prisoner’s Mess made of timber and iron was used as a shelter shed and was demolished
in the 1920s.

In 1914 the infant school was built, in response to overcrowding and changing ideas about the education of very
young children. It is one of twelve infant schools built from 1911 to 1914 which were based on standard plans
designed by G. W. Watson.

Today, there is little evidence of the school’s former life as a Stockade and asylum. A stone tablet, believed to be
from the Stockade Governor’s House, has been set into the wall of the 1878 building.
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Extent of Registration

Heritage Act 2017

NOTICE OF REGISTRATION

As Executive Director for the purpose of the Heritage Act 2017, | give notice under section 53 that the Victorian
Heritage Register is amended by modifying a place in the Heritage

Register:

Number: H1626

Category: Registered Place

Place: Carlton North Primary School

Location: 60 Lee Street, Carlton North

Municipality: Yarra City

All of the place shown hatched on Diagram 1626 encompassing all of Allotment 10 Section 80B at Carlton, Parish
of Jika Jika.

Dated 14 December 2023

STEVEN AVERY

Executive Director

This place/object may be included in the Victorian Heritage Register pursuant to the Heritage Act 2017. Check
the Victorian Heritage Database, selecting 'Heritage Victoria' as the place source.

For further details about Heritage Overlay places, contact the relevant local council or go to Planning Schemes
Online http://planningschemes.dpcd.vic.gov.au/
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